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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS

PHILLIP BEVERLY and )
ROBERT BIONAZ, )
)
Plaintiffs, )
) Case No.
\A )
) COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTIVE
CHICAGO STATE UNIVERSITY BOARD ) AND DECLARATORY RELIEF
OF TRUSTEES, WAYNE D. WATSON, )} AND DAMAGES
PATRICK CAGE, and )
JANELLE CARTER, )} JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
)
Defendants. )

Plaintiffs Phillip Beverly and Robert Bionaz complain of Defendants and allege:
I. INTRODUCTION

1. “The vigilant protection of constitutional freedoms is nowhere more vital than in
the community of American schools.” Shelton v. Tucker, 364 U.S. 479, 487 (1960). This is
particularly true of public universities, where “the freedoms of speech, assembly, and petition
must be zealously guarded because “Jtjhe college classroom with ifs surrounding environs is
peculiarly the ‘marketplace of ideas.”” Healy v. James, 408 U.S. 169, 180 (1972). This
protection extends to all types of discourse, including criticism directed against high-ranking
university officials.

2, Plaintiffs Phillip Beverly and Robert Bionaz, members of the faculty at Chicago
State University, are frequent contributors to a blog titled CSU Faculty Voice that exposes
mismanagement at Chicago State University (“CSU”). Although the United States Supreme
Court has held that “state colleges and universitics are not enclaves immune from the sweep of
the First Amendment,” id.,, the Defendants, administrators at CSU, have engaged in an ongoing

campaign to silence Plaintiffs’ criticisms of how the University is run. They have threatened
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legal action in an effort to shut down the blog, taken other behind-the-scenes actions to achieve
this objective, and ultimately adopted a “Cyberbullying Policy” that broadly prohibits electronic
communication that may have an “adverse impact on the work environment of a CSU faculty
member or employee” as another tool for restricting Plaintiffs’ speech.

3. CSU’s actions ignore the fundamental principle that neither students nor teachers
“shed their constitutional rights to freedom of speech or expression at the schoolhouse gate.”
Tinker v. Des Moines Indpt. Comm. Sch. Dist., 393 U.S. 503, 506 (1969). In particular, the
Supreme Court has emphatically rejected the argument that “teachers may constitutionally be
compelled to relinquish the First Amendment rights they would otherwise enjoy as citizens to
comment on matters of public interest in connection with the operation of the public schools in
which they work.” Pickering v. Bd. of Education, 391 U.8. 563, 568 (1968). Indeed, the Court
most recently reaffirmed unanimously that “[s]peech by citizens on matters of public concemn
lies at the heart of the First Amendment,” and the type of speech at issue in this case, “corruption
in a public program and misuse of state funds - obviously involves a matter of significant public
concern.” Lare v. Franks, 2014 WL 2765285 *6, 9 (U.S., June 19, 2014).

4. This is a civil rights action to protect and vindicate the First and Fourteenth
Amendment rights of Phillip Beverly, Robert Bionaz, and all faculty and students at CSU. By
policy and practice, CSU unlawfully restricts the free exercise of constitutional rights to free
expression, and it has acted in this case to abridge the Plaintiffs’ constitutional rights.
Accordingly, these policies and enforcement practices are challenged on their face and as applied
to the Plaintiffs. This action seeks declaratory and injunctive relief, damages, and attorneys’

fees.
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I1. JURISDICTION AND VENUE

5. This action arises under the United States Constitution, particularly the First and
Fourteenth Amendments, and the Civil Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 1983 and 1988.

6. This Court has original jurisdiction over these federal claims pursuant to 28
U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 1343.

7. This Court has authority to grant the requested declaratory judgment pursuant to
28 U.S.C. §§ 2201 and 2202 and Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 57.

8. This Court has authority to issue the requested injunctive relief pursuant to 42
U.S.C. § 1983 and Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65.

9. This Court has authority to award attorneys’ fees and costs pursuant to 42 U.S.C.
§ 1988.

10. Venue is proper in the United States District Court for the Northern District of
Illinois pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b) because the events giving rise to the instant claim
occurred within this District and because at least one Defendant resides in this District.

III. PLAINTIFFS

1. Plaintiff Phillip Beverly is, and was at all times relevant to this Complaint, a
resident of Chicago, Illinois. He is presently an associate professor at CSU, where he has taught
political science for over 22 years, and is president of the faculty senate. Professor Beverly is
also one of the founders of, and contributors to, the blog CSU Faculty Voice.

12. Plaintiff Robert Bionaz is, and was at all times relevant to this Complaint, a
resident of Evergreen Park, Illinois. Professor Bionaz is an associate professor of history at

CSU. He is also one of the founders of, and contributors to, CSU Faculty Voice.
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Iv. DEFENDANTS

13. Defendant Chicago State University Board of Trustees has ox-fersight of Chicago
State University, a public university organized and existing under the laws of the State of
Illinois. Article 5 of the “Chicago State University Law,” included in the Illinois Higher
Education Act, provides that “[t]he Board shall have power to enter into contracts and to sue and
be sued.” 110 ILCS 660/5-40; see Cannon v. University of Health Sciences/Chicago Medical
School, 710 ¥.2d 351, 356-57 (7th Cir. 1983). The Board is sued for equitable relief only.

14. Defendant Wayne D. Watson is, and was at all times relevant to this Complaint,
President of Chicago State University. He is CSU’s chief executive officer, responsible for
CSU’s administration and policymaking, including the policies and procedures challenged
herein.  Acting under color of state law, Defendant Watson acquiesced in, sanctioned, and
supported the actions of the other Defendants. Defendant Watson is sued in his official and
personal capacities. MCI Telecommunication Corp. v. lllinois Bell Telephone Co., 222 F.3d 323,
345 (7th Cir. 2000).

15. Defendant Patrick Cage is, and was at all times relevant to this Complaint, Vice
President of Labor and Legal Affairs and General Counsel at CSU. He is responsible for CSU’s
administration and policy-making, including the policies and procedﬁes that were applied to
deprive Professors Beverly and Bionaz of their constitutional rights. Defendant Cage is sued in
his official and personal capacities.

16. Defendant Janelle Carter is, and was at all times relevant to this Complaint, an
Associate General Counsel at CSU. She is responsible for implementing the policies and
procedures that were applied to deprive Professors Beverly and Bionaz of their constitutional

rights. Defendant Carter is sued in her official and personal capacities.
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V. STATEMENT OF FACTS
A, Defendants’ Efforts to Censor CSU Faculty Voice

17. Since 2009, CSU Professor Phillip Beverly has published a blog titled CSU
Faculty Voice with seven other CSU faculty members, including Plaintiff Robert Bionaz. CSU
Faculty Voice was launched in part because of previous unsuccessful efforts by the university to
censor the student newspaper for publishing articles critical of the administration, and illegal
efforts by CSU to improperly withhold public records under the state’s Freedom of Information
Act.

18. CSU Faculty Voice, which can be found online at csufacultyvoice. blogspot.com,
is not housed on CSU’s computer servers, but rather by the well-known, free blog hosting
platform Blogspot (which is owned by Google Inc.). Like most blogs, it can be accessed on any
computer with Internet access, including those located on the CSU campus.

19. CSU Faculty Voice is wholly noncommercial and serves as an outlet for the
personal opinions of the contributing faculty members. Articles appearing on CSU Faculty
Voice often document allegations of mismanagement by the CSU administration, and provide
links to relevant public documents.

20. The site archives posts once a month, but the older entries remain available on
the site.

21. CSU Faculty Voice makes no claim that it is endorsed by, or speaks on behalf of,
CSU in any official capacity.

22 Because it is openly critical of the current administration, no reasonable person,
upon visiting the CSU Faculty Voice blog, could mistake it for the official website of Chicago

State University, or indeed any kind of official news outlet of the University.
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23. Defendant Patrick B. Cage sent a cease and desist letter to Professor Beverly
dated November 11, 2013 ordering the Plaintiff to “immediately disable [the] Chicago State
University Faculty Voice Blog . . . no later than November 15, 2013 in order to avoid legal
action.” Defendant Cage based this demand on the claim that CSU Faculty Voice did not comply
with the “high standards of civility and professionalism [that] are cenfral tenants [sic] of the
University’s values and included in the standards of conduct required of faculty members.” Ex.
A.

24. The November 11, 2013 demand letter appeared to be predicated on CSU’s
Computer Usage Policy, which requires all electronic communication, “including websites and
blog posts on the university server” to “adhere to the University standards of conduct which
prohibit any communication which tends to embarrass or humiliate any member of the
community.” It also counsels “avoiding lewd, obscene, defamatory or harassing comments.” Ex.
B.

25. Defendant Cage also alleged that use of “CSU’s trade names and marks™ on the
blog caused confusion, diminished the University’s brand, and implied CSU’s endorsement of
the blog’s commentary.

26. On November 11, 2013, CSU did not hold any registered trademarks.

27, On November 14, 2013, three days after Defendant Cage sent the letter, CSU
filed three trademark registration applications.

28. Wesley Johnson, counsel for the contributors to CSU Faculty Voice, replied to
Defendant Cage’s letter on November 27, 2013, rejecting CSU’s ultimatum and demanding that

CSU cease its efforts to shut down the blog. Ex. C.
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29. Donald Levine, external counsel retained by CSU to press CSU’s trademark
claims, wrote a follow-up letter to Plaintiffs on January 3, 2014, which alleged that CSU Faculty
Voice falsely gave the impression that it represented the views of the entire CSU faculty. Ex. D.

30. Levine’s assertion is implausible on its face. The masthead of CSU Faculty
Voice has an image of hedges trimmed to form the letters “CSU.” Superimposed on the image
are the words “Chicago State University,” but “Chicago™ is crossed out and the word “Crony” is
substituted. Ex. E. The caption above the image reads: “Where We Hire Our Friends.”

3L Levine’s letter also claimed that the blog’s masthead used a “distinctive
photographic image™ of the “widely recognized CSU hedges,” allegedly part of the University’s
trade dress, violated CSU’s intellectual property rights and the Lanham Act.

32. The letter demanded that CSU Faculty Voice ceaée using CSU’s name, as well as
any picture of CSU, on the website and that it place a disclaimer written by counsel for CSU
prominently on the page.

33. On March 3, 2014, the Foundation for Individual Rights in Education, a non-
partisan watchdog group that monitors compliance with the First Amendment on college
campuses, wrote Defendant Watson, explaining in detail why CSU’s efforts to shut down the
CSU Faculty Voice are unconstitutional.

B. Defendants’ Other Efforts to Silence Plaintiff Phillip Beverly

34, On information and belief, Defendants Watson, Cage, and others met with other

CSU administrators and lawyers at the end of January 2013, or beginning of February 2014 to

discuss ways to silence Phillip Beverly’s criticism of the CSU administration.




Case: 1:14-cv-04970 Document #: 1 Filed: 07/01/14 Page 8 of 21 PagelD #:8

35, On information and belief, those at the meeting, including Defendants Watson,
Cage, and others, discussed the feasibility of contacting Google Inc., which controls Blogspot,
the platform for CSU Facuity Voice, to demand that it shut down the site.

36. Following this meeting, Defendants have initiated various formal and informal
actions in retaliation for Plaintiffs’ speech criticizing the CSU administration.

37. Professor Beverly, who is the President of the CSU Faculty Senate, presided over
a Faculty Senate Executive Committee Hearing on Repression on April 9, 2014 to discuss
repression of free expressibn at CSU. Shortly before the scheduled event, the organizers were
informed that the room they had reserved was not available. The event was then moved to a
classroom.

38. Students in Professor Beverly’s public management class attended the April 9,
2014 Hearing on Repression. Professor Beverly was later nofified that he would face
disciplinary hearings for having his class in an unauthorized location.

39. At an initial hearing on the disciplinary charges, it was alleged that Professor
Beverly had violated the CSU Board of Trustees policy forbidding professors from imposing
their personal beliefs on students.

40. As of June 30, 2014, the disciplinary charges against Professor Beverly are still
pending.

C. Defendants’ Other Efforts to Silence Professor Bionaz

41, On March 7, 2014, Defendant Watson introduced a proposed “Cyberbullying

Policy” to the Board of Trustees, stating, “the purpose of this policy is to protect members of the

CSU family from bullying through any form of electronic communication.” This policy was
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later adopted (as detailed below) and has been applied to restrict the speech of Professor Bionaz.
Ex.F.

42. The “Cyberbullying Policy” was adopted by the CSU Board of Trustees on May
9, 2014, but the final approved policy does not yet appear on the CSU website and has not been
made publicly available. Nevertheless, the Defendants have taken steps to apply the policy to
Professor Bionaz and to restrict his speech about matters of public concern.

43. One effort to apply the “Cyberbullying Policy” to Professor Bionaz arose from a
blog post in which the Plaintiff questioned the propriety of cronyism in CSU hiring decisions.
Another effort to apply the policy governing electronic communications was inexplicably based
on a face-to-face conversation between Professor Bionaz and Tom Wogan, CSU’s Director of
Public Relations.

D. Unconstitutional Computer Usage Policy

44, The policies that Defendants have utilized to restrict the Plaintiffs’ speech are
facially unconstitutional.

45. CSU’s Computer Usage Policy includes a directive to “[r]espect the rights and
sensibilitics of others.” Under this policy, electronic mail and all other -electronic
communication (including websites and blog posts on the university server) must “adhere to the
University standards of conduct which prohibit any communication which tends to embarrass or
humiliate any member of the community,” It also requires users to avoid “lewd, obscene,
defamatory or harassing comments.” The Policy admonishes users to “[r]espect the mission of
the University in the iarger community.”

46. Under CSU policies, “[a]il University codes of conduct apply to information

technology as well as to other forms of communication and activity.”




Case: 1:14-cv-04970 Document #: 1 Filed: 07/01/14 Page 10 of 21 PagelD #:10

47, Anyone using CSU information systems must certify the user’s understanding
that failure to comply with applicable laws, rules, policies, and procedures may lead to
disciplinary action up to and including termination of University employment and possible
criminal prosecution, depending on the nature of the violation.

48. The provision in the Computer Usage Policy that prohibits “any communication
which tends to embarrass or humiliate any member of the community” does not define the terms
“embarrass” or “humiliate,” nor does it provide any type of threshold that speech or conduct
must reach in order to meet these standards. This atlows the policy to be enforced on the basis of
mere hurt feelings, subjective damage to reputation, and alleged mental or emotional harm.

49, The Computer Usage Policy does not define “lewd” or “harassing,” leaving the
Defendants with unbridled discretion to expand or restrict the definition of “lewd” and
“harassing” to sanction speech they' do not like or allow speech with which they agree. The
policy likewise does not define “obscene” comments, leaving the Defendants with unbridled
discretion to enforce the policy against the mere use of profane language or commentary on a
topic of a sexual nature.

50. The Computer Usage Policy also requires CSU computer users to “Respect the
mission of the University in the larger community.” Neither “respect” nor the “larger
community” is defined. Anyone accessing the Internet through CSU’s servers is thus required to
express themselves in private communications or non-university forums, such as Facebook, in a
way that “respects” the University or be potentially subject to discipline for violating that

nebulous standard.

10
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51. The Computer Usage Policy vests Defendants with unbridled discretion to
expand or restrict the definition of “respect” to sanction speech they do not like or allow speech
with which they agree.

52. Plaintiffs fear that they will be disciplined under this policy for posting entries on
their blog, CSU Faculty Voice even though the blog is not maintained on university servers. The
Policy does not provide standards or definitions to guide the discretion of the public officials of
CSU tasked with determining whether a computer user’s speech can be properly sanctioned.
Thus, CSU public officials are empowered to administer the Computer Usage Policy arbitrarily
or on the basis of impermissible factors, such as the content and viewpoint of speech as well as
whether particular speech is critical of the university or its leadership.

E. Unconstitutional Cyberbullying Policy

53. On May 9, 2014, CSU adopted a new “Cyberbullying Policy” that prohibits
“deliberate or repeated conduct” that “harasses [or] intimidates an individual ... or has the effect
of substantially disrupting the individual’s daily life via the use of electronic information and
communication devices; [] the use of information and communication technologies to support a
deliberate, repeated, and hostile course of conduct that is intended to harm others; or []
intentional and repeated harm inflicted through the use of computers, cell phones, and electronic
devices.”

54, This policy applies to any and all “electronic speech,” defined as: “expressive
conduct (verbal, aural [sic], graphic, symbolic, or written) that is conveyed or otherwise
communicated via electronic information and communication technology devices and/or media”

including e-mail messages, instant messaging, text messaging, cellular telephone

11
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communications, internet blog postings, social media site postings, internet chat room posts,
and/or internet postings.”

55. As written, CSU’s “Cyberbullying Policy” is not limited to “harassment” that is
severe, pervasive, and objectively offensive.

56. The policy’s definition of cyberbullying, prohibiting, in part, “conduct or
activity” that “harasses . . . an individual,” does not define the term “harass,” nor does it limit the
University’s ability to intervene in communications faculty or students might have with those not
affiiated with the University. This vests Defendants with unbridled discretion to expand or
restrict the definition of “harass” to sanction speech they do not like or allow speech with which
they agree.

57. The policy does not define the term “harm” in its prohibition on “the use of
information and communication technologies to support a deliberate, repeated, and hostile course
of conduct that is intended to harm others.” Nor does it define the term “harm” in its ban on
“intentional and repeated harm inflicted through the use of computers, cell phones, and
electronic devices.” These provisions vest Defendants with unbridled discretion to expand or
restrict the definition of “harm™ to sanction speech they do not like or allow speech with which
they agree.

58. Plaintiffs fear that the lack of any definition, illustration, or limitation for-the
term “harm’ means that the “Cyberbullying Policy” will be used to punish speakers, such as the
Plaintiffs, whose speech causes hurt feelings, embarrassment, subjective damage to reputation or
emotional harm.

59. Plaintiffs’ fear about the expansive conception of “harm” is amplified by the fact

that subsection ii requires only “hostile” expression that “is infended to harm others” (emphasis

12
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added). Under this formulation, speech is subject to censorship and discipline if it is “hostile” to
another person or entity and is deemed to demonstrate an “intent” to harm others, even if no such
harm, however slight, ever occurs.

60. As used in the “Cyberbullying Policy,” the term “repeated” encompasses any
“conduct that is engaged in on more than one occasion as well as conduct that has a continuing
manifestation beyond the time of the conduct itself, including, without limitation, internet blog
postings, social media site postings, internet chat room postings, and/or other internet postings.”
Thus, refusal to remove an offensive online message would be considered a “repeated” violation
of the policy.

61. The policy does not provide adequate standards or definitions to guide the public
officials of CSU tasked with determining whether a student’s or faculty member’s expression
can be properly sanctioned. Thus, CSU public officials are empowered to administer the policy
arbitrarily or on the basis of impermissible factors, such as the content and viewpoint of speech
as well as whether particular speech is critical of the university or its leadership.

62. The policy provides for disciplinary action “under the relevant collective
bargaining agreements, Board of Trustees Regulations, State Universities Civil Service Status
and Rules, or University Student Conduct Cede” regulations.

VL CAUSES OF ACTION
COUNTI

Facial Challenge to Violation of Right to Free Speech Under the Plaintiffs’
First and Fourteenth Amendment Rights (42 U.S.C. § 1983) — (Computer Usage Policy)

(All Defendants)
63. Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each of the foregoing allegations in this Complaint,
64. Defendants’ Computer Usage Policy is unconstitutionally overbroad due to its

prohibition on “any communication which tends to embarrass or humiliate any member of the

13
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community.” This restricts any discussion that criticizes university leadership or decision-
making, as well as any speech that sheds a negative light on the institution, as the University
could argue that such discourse creates public “embarrassment” or “humiliation” for the
institution.

65. The Computer Usage Policy is also overbroad because of its ban on “lewd,
obscene, defamatory or harassing comments,” as well as its instruction to “Respect the mission
of the University in the larger community.” While speech that is “lewd” or lacking in “respect”
may be distasteful to some or even many individuals, such speech is protected by the First
Amendment.

66. The government may not prohibit the expression of an idea simply because
society finds the idea itself offensive or disagreeable. Texas v. Johnson, 491 U.S. 397, 414
(1989).

67. The Computer Usage Policy burdens far more speech than is necessary to serve
any asserted interests on the part of the University. Rather than being narrowly tailored to
protect speech as the Constitution requires, this policy broadly prohibits speech, and thus inhibits
the free exchange of ideas that is central to higher education.

68. Even if narrowly tailored, a restriction on speech is void for vagueness if the
prohibitive terms are not clearly defined such that a person or ordinary intelligence can readily
identify the applicable standard for inclusion and exclusion. Grayned v. City of Rockford,
408 U.S. 104, 108 (1972).

69. Vague and undefined policies vest in the public officials who must enforce them

an unbridled discretion that may be exercised in an inconsistent or discriminatory manner.

14
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70. Restrictions on expression in CSU’s Computer Usage Policy do not provide
standards to guide the discretion of CSU officials who must enforce it. This empowers them to
administer the policy arbitrarily or on the basis of impermissible factors, including the content
and viewpoint of speech.

71. Defendants’ Computer Usage Policy is unconstitutionally vague because it fails
to define or illustrate key terms such as “embarrass,” “humiliate,” “lewd,” and “respect.” The
policy ignores the fact that speech that is “embarrassing” or “disrespectful” in one person’s eyes,
for example, may be perfectly innocuous to another person.

72. The Computer Usage Policy’s vague command to “[r]espect the mission of the
University in the larger community” does not provide the requisite specificity as to the
regulation’s reach into expressive activity. This allows the University to broadly enforce the
provision against speech that is critical of CSU or sheds a negative light on it in the community.

73. The Computer Usage Policy’s lack of guidance leaves faculty members and
students to guess at the type of expression it may restrict. Students and faculty members will
likely self-censor rather than risk disciplinary action.

74. As a direct result of Defendants® Computer Usage Policy, faculty and students at
CSU are deprived of their right to free speech under the First and Fourteenth Amendments to the
Constitution.

75. As a legal consequence of Defendants’ violation of Plaintiffs” and other similarly
situated faculty members’ and students’ First and Fourteenth Amendment rights, as alleged
above, Plaintiffs are entitled to injunctive relief and the reasonable costs of this lawsuit,

including their reasonable attorneys’ fees.

15
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COUNT I
Facial Challenge to Violation of Right to Free Speech Under the Plaintiffs’
First and Fourteenth Amendment Rights (42 U.S.C. § 1983) — (Cyberbullying Policy)

{All Defendanis)

76. Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each of the foregoing allegations in this Complaint.

77. Defendants’ Cyberbullying Policy is unconstitutionally overbroad due to its
prohibition on “the use of information and communication technologies to support a deliberate,
repeated, and hostile course of conduct that is intended to harm others,” as well as on
“intentional and repeated harm inflicted through the use of computers, cell phones, and
electronic devices.”

78. The Cyberbullying Policy lacks any definition, illustration, or limitation for the
term “harm,” giving Defendants unfettered discretion to punish speech that causes hurt feelings,
embarrassment, subjective damage to reputation or emotional harm.

79. The Cyberbullying Policy is also unconstitutionally overbroad because it
purports to regulate all speech in any medium of electronic communication both on and off
campus.

80. The Cyberbullying Policy burdens far more speech than is necessary to serve any
asserted interests on the part of the University. Rather than being narrowly tailored to protect
speech as the Constitution requires, this policy broadly prohibits speech, and thus inhibits the
free exchange of ideas that is central to higher education.

81. Defendants’ Cyberbullying Policy is also unconstitutionally vague because it
bans speech protected by the First Amendment without defining its key terms. The policy does
not define the term “harm” at all, nor does it define what it means to “harass” an individual.

These omissions allow the policy to be enforced against virtually any expression that offers a

16
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negative or unflattering opinion of another person, including speech that is critical of a university
official or leadership.

82. Faculty and student First Amendment rights are subject to the unfettered
discretion CSU administrators, such as the Defendants, who are given the discretion to enforce
the Cyberbullying Policy, no matter how unreasonable or hypersensitive their interpretations of
particular speech may be.

83. The resulting uncertainty will lead many faculty members and students to censor
their own expression rather than risk disciplinary action, creating a harmful chilling effect on
campus discourse.

84. As a direct result of Defendants® Cyberbullying Policy, faculty and students at
CSU are deprived of their right to free speech under the First and Fourteenth Amendments to the
Constitution.

85. As alegal consequence of rDefendants’ violation of Plaintiffs’ and other similarly
situated faculty members’ and students’ First and Fourteenth Amendment rights, as alleged
above, Plaintiffs are entitled to injunctive relief and the reasonable costs of this lawsuit,
including their reasonable attorneys’ fees.

COUNT IIL
As-Applied Violation of Plaintiffs’ Right to Free Speech

Under the First and Fourteenth Amendments (42 U.S.C. § 1983)
(Defendants Watson, Cage, and Carter)

86. Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each of the foregoing allegations in this Complaint.

87. All of the acts of Defendants, their officers, agents, employees, and servants
were executed, and are continuing to be executed, by the Defendants under the color and
pretense of the policies, statutes, ordinances, regulations, customs, and usages of the State of

Tllinois.
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88. The views expressed on CSU Faculty Voice are protected under the First
Amendment. Defendants’ attempts to silence them violate the constitutional rights of the
authors.

89. Defendants’ attempts to censor the Plaintiffs by demanding that they cease
publication of the CSU Faculty Voice and threatening legal action violate the First and
Fourteenth Amendments.

90. Defendants’ efforts to investigate or sanction the Plaintiffs for views published in
the CSU Faculty Voice under CSU’s Computer Usage Policy violate the First and Fourteenth
Amendments.

91. Defendants’ efforts to investigate or sanction the Plaintiffs for views published in
the CSU Faculty Voice under CSU’s Cyberbpllying Policy violate the First and Fourteenth
Amendments.

92. Defendants’ ¢fforts to subject the Plaintiffs to disciplinary procedures based on
their expressive activities violate the First and Fourteenth Amendments.

93. Defendants have deprived Plaintiffs and others of their clearly established rights
to freedom of speech and expression secured by the First and Fourteenth Amendments to the
Constitution of the United States. By attempting to shut down Plaintiffs’ blog and punish them
for expressiﬂg their views, Defendants have violated a clearly established constitutional right of
which all reasonable college administrators and staff should have known, rendering them liable
to Plaintiffs under 42 U.S.C. § 1983.

94, The denial of coﬁstitutional rights is irreparable injury per se, and Plaintiffs are

entitled to declaratory and injunctive relief. As a consequence of being denied the First
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Amendment right to express themselves, Plaintiffs experienced significant emotional pain and
anguish,

95. As a legal consequence of Defendants’ violation of Plaintiffs” and other similarly
situated faculty members’ and students’ First and Fourteenth Amendment rights, as alleged
above, Plaintiffs are entitled to injunctive relief and the reasonable costs of this lawsuit,

inchuding their reasonable attorneys’ fees. Plaintiffs are also entitled to damages in an amount to

be determined by the court.
COUNT 1V
Declaratory Judgment and Injunction (28 U.S.C. § 2201, et seq.)
96. Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each of the foregoing allegations in this Complaint.
97. An actual controversy has arisen and now exists between Plaintiffs and

Defendants concerning Plaintiff’s rights under the United States Constitution. A judicial
declaration is necessary and appropriate at this time as to Counts I through III above.

98. Plaintiffs desire a judicial determination of their rights against Defendants as
they pertain to Plaintiffs’ right to speak without being subjected to regulations that are
overbroad, that are not narrowly tailored to serve a substantial governmental interest, and that are
vague.

99. To prevent further violation of Plaintiffs’ constitutional rights by Defendants, it
is appropriate and proper that a declaratory judgment issue, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2201 and
FedR.Civ.P. 57, declaring Chicago State University’s Student Conduct Code policies
unconstitutional.

100.  Furthermore, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2202 and Fed.R.Civ.P. 65, it is appropriate
and hereby requested that this Court issue a permanent injunction prohibiting the Defendants

from enforcing their restrictions on Plaintiffs’ expressive activities to the extent they are
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unconstitutional and to prevent the ongoing violation of Plaintiffs’ constitutional rights.
Plaintiffs and their fellow faculty, as well as CSU students, are suffering irreparable harm from
continued enforcement of CSU’s unconstitutional policies, monetary damages are inadequate to
remedy their harm, and the balance of equities and public interest both favor a grant of injunctive
relief.

VIL PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs Phillip Beverly and Robert Bionaz respectfully request that the
Court enter judgment against Defendants and provide Plaintiffs the following relief:

A. A declaratory judgment stating that Defendants’ Computer Usage and
Cyberbullying Policies are unconstitutional facially and as-applied, and that they violate
Plaintiffs’ rights as guaranteed under the First and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States
Constitution;

B. A permanent injunction restraining enforcement of Defendants’ unconstitutional
speech codes and enforcement practices;

C. A declaratory judgment that Defendants’ censorship of Plaintiffs’ expressive -
activity violated their First and Fourteenth Amendment rights;

D. Monetary damages in an amount to be determined by the Court to compensate for
the Defendants’ censorship and threat of punishment that chilled Plaintiffs’ expressive activity;

E. Plaintiffs’ reasonable costs and expenses of this action, including attorneys’ fees,
in accordance with 42 U.8.C. § 1988, and other applicable law; and

F. All other further relief to which Plaintiffs may be entitled.

VIIL DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Plaintiffs demand a trial by jury of all issues properly triable by jury in this action.
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DATED: July 1, 2014

By: /s/
ROBERT CORN-REVERE

(pro hac vice application to be filed)
bobcorarevere@dwt.com
RONALD G. LONDON

(pro hac vice application to be filed)
ronnielondon@dwt.com
LISA B. ZYCHERMAN

(pro hac vice application to be filed)
lisazycherman@dwt.com
DAVIS WRIGHT TREMAINE LLP
1919 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Suite 800
Washington, DC 20006
Telephone: (202) 973-4200

JESSICA TOVROV

GOODMAN TOVROV HARDY & JOHNSON LLC
103 West Madison Street, Suite 1500

Chicago, IL 60602

Telephone: (312) 252-7362

jessica@tovrovlaw.com

Attorneys for Plaintiffs Phillip Beverly
and Robert Bionaz
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br.Phillip A, Beverly, Publisher and Editor - -

-Res infringement of Chicago State University Trade Names and Marks

Page2 o
We therefore demand that you immediately disable Chicago State University Faculty Voice Blog 3

and any posting thatincludes. the unauthorized use of any trade names o trademarks owned by the
-University. Please provide us with written confirmation that you have complied with the reguestio
Jater than November 15, 2013, in ordér to avoid fegal actlon.

.Pursuant to apphcabie federal statutes and state laws, we alsorequast that you preserve & copy
of your biog home'page and any associated web pages that contain any of the Unwerscty’s trade names
and trademarks, in the event litigation ensues or untll this issue has been resolved. Further, be advised :
that thisletter dées hot constiiite an éxhatstive staternent of the University's position nor doés it ;
constitute a walver or limitation of any.of the University legal or equitable rights; ail of which are
expressly reserved.

PatrickB Cage Nt P
Vice Presidentand General cOu__el ‘
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Caugar Connect | A¥o 7 | Campus Directory | Map & Directions R

_ | o 3 aem T
. informaiiun Techaology Divisian

CSU Computer Usage Policy

Application Services Introduction

Network Infrastritctisre This document provides guidatines for appropriate use by students, faculty and stafi of computers, and other : r
technologica fzcliities and services at Chicago State Bniversity. it is not a comprehensive document awvering

iTD Home all aspacts of computer and technology use. it offers principles to help gulde members of the Chicage State

University commistity, and specific policy statements that serve as a reference points,

This policy will be modifed as new questions and situations arise. Each individual who uses Chicago State
Universitys computing facilities thereby agrees that hisfher use of these facilities will remain within the
bound of acceptable use as descaribed In this and other University computing polides or other Chicago State
University codes of conduer.

Technology is an encrmotsly rich resource for innovation fn the furtherance of Chicago State University’s

academic mission, it also offers new forums Jor the University's hstorle e 1t to the expression and .
discussion of a wide diversity of 1deas and opinions. Bue technofogy ako intreases the risks of actions, [
deliberata or not, that are harmful it various ways, Including: {a) interference with the rights of others; (b)
viclation of the law; {c) interference with the mission of the University; or (d} endangering the integrity of
the University's information romputer systems, network or other technologies,

The prefiferation of computers and information technologies does not alter basic codes of behavior in
academic Ufe, but, it does place some issuas in new contexts. Chicago State University computing systems
and resources shal be wsed only for legftimate Unbversity purposes, including Instruction, resezrch,
administration, public information and service and other approved tasks.

Technology has greatly expanded our ability to access and exchange information. The use of technology
therefore, requirves more vigilant efforts and more secure safeguards to proteck both property and privacy
rights.

The guidelines that follow seek to hoth preserve the freedom to inguice and share information and sustain the
security and integrity of fndividuals wdthin the community, computers and the network system itself. While
some of the guldelines call for respestful and responsible use of the computer networlts to protect the rights
of individuals, others wamn against actions that may violate the law. '

Responsibility :

All computers, network or other technology users have the responsibility to use CSU technology resources in an
efficient, ethical, and lawful manner. User should:

1. Know and understand CSUs Computer Use Policy.

. Abide by €St policy on ownership and responsibitity for €5t} wehsiles, copyright, intellectual property
and fair use.

3. Maintain their own files, save and back up all data, and remave outdated materials from network
storage.

4. Protect the integrity of their accounts by changing passwords regularly, bot giving passwords to any
other person, or not leaving a netwarked evmputer withcut logging out.

5. Learn how to operate the hardware and software the user has.

Principtes and Guidelines
Use of CSUs computers, networks and other technologies are priviteges.
C5U may restrict skudents, staff, faculty or other authorized users whe:

1. Enters and University any computer, computing network, server o system which Is unauthorized.
2. Engages in any activity that vialates the integrity or interfares with the rormal operation of the
University's computing system.
3. Uses and “peer to pesr” software that violates digital rights management. The use of any “peer to
peer” software that violates digital rights management is steictly prohfbited.
4. Makes anwnauthorized access of the University's computing system by:
® Any use of another person's identification and password;

» Unauthorized use of znother persons device for accessing the network or other systems;

hitpifwww.csuedufitdinetworiinfrastructurefinfosecuritypolicies/compolicy.htm 14
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B27/2014 Compuder Usage Pdicy]| Information Tectmology Division | Chicago State Universily i
» Unawthorized entry into another person’s device or system files to read or change 2 file’s
content;
5. Any activity which catses 2 denfaf of service upon University computing resounces. .

5. Any activity whidh launches a denfal of service upon any other website,
7. Any activity that interferes with the work of ancther CSU student, faculty member, staff member or
University officlal
8. Any use for personal gain or commercial activity.
9. Any use for personal gain or commerdial activity.
m Accessing child pornography .
= Participation in chain latters
& Introduction of matware or other hacker aetivity
u Unauthorized reproduction of distribution of copwighted materfal induding software, text
images, audio of videa
» Instaliation of software which is not licensed for use on the machine whete it Is installed.

Compliance with the Computer Use Policy Means:

1. Respect the rights and sensibilities of others,

a. Electronic mail and all other eleetronic communfcation ({nchuding websites and blog posts) shoutd
adhere to the Untversity standards of conduct which prohibits any communication which tends to .
embarrass, humiliate or shed a negative light on any member of the community. Respect others ‘
you contatt electvonfcally by avoiding distasteful, inflammatory, harassing or otherwise
unacceptable comments.

b. Others have a right to Xnow who is contacting them.

c. Respect the privacy of others and their accounts. Do not access oF fntercept files or data of
others without permission. Do not use the password of others or acoess files under false
identity.

d. Bistribution af excessive amotints of unsolicited mail is inapprapriate.

2. Distributicn of excessfve amounts of unsplicited mait is irappropriate. ' i
2. Be aware of the legal implications of your computer use, :
a. The internst enables users to disseminate material worldwide. Thus the impact of dissermination
o the internet 1s often far broader than that of a statement made on paper or in routine
conversation. .

b. Much of what appears an the intemnet is protected by copyright law regardless of whether the !
copyright i5 expressty noted. Users should generally assume that materfal is copyrighted unless ;
they know otherwise and not copy or disseminate copyrighted material without permission.
Copyright protection alsa applfes to much software, which is often licensed to the University
with specific limitations on Its use. Both individual users and the University may, in some
dircumstances, be held legally responsible for violations of copyright.

c. Many other state and federal laws, incloding those prohibiting deceptive advertising, use of
others' trademarks, defamaticn, violations of privacy, and cbscenity apply to network-based
communications. '

3, Respect the mission of the University in the larget community

a. The Uiversity makes internet resources available to students, faculty and stafi to further the
Universitys educational, research, service and University-related activitles and missions.
Recognizing that the Inkemnet Is also an fntegral part of sociatization and leisure among studerts
fiving on campus, the network s avaflable to students for purpeses of non-academic
cormunteations and entertainment to the extent that such use does not compromise the
netwark or the amount of bandwidth available for academic-related uses.

h. The University makes intemet resources availzble to students, faculty and staff to further the
Unfversitys educational, research, service and University-related activities and missions.
Recognizing that tha Enternet is also an Integral part of sodalization and telsure among students
living on ecampus, the network is availsble to students for purposes of non-academic
communications and entertainment to the extent that such use does not compromise the
network of the amount of bandwidth available for academic-related uses.

¢. The University dees not monitor the content of web pages, elecironic mail er other on-line
communications and is not respotsible for the views expressed by individual users. Under
certain circumstances, however, the University may be held liable if it fails to take reasonable
remedial steps after it leams of ikegal uses of jts computer facilitles, Use computer resources ' A
lawfully.

hitp:fwww.csu.edufitdnetworkinfrasiruchurelinfosecuritypoliclesfcompolicy.him 24
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272014 Conputer Usage Pdlicy| Informeticn Technology Division | Chicago State University
d. Remember that you are responsible for all activity fnvelving your aceount. Keep your acooiint
_ seawre and private. Do not use Identifving data or words a5 a d; your password
shoutd be difficult to aradk or otherwise guess either by individuaks or by sophisticated computer
programs,

€. Materialposted on web pages Is generally aceessible and thus deserves even greater thought and
care than your private electronic mail. Remember that, absent restrictions, your web page is
available to aryone, anywhere, and act accordingly. » .

f. The Undversity has 5 right 1o expect that computer wers will properly identify themseives. :
Computer acoounts are assfgned and Identifled to individuals. Dont misrepresent youwrself.

4. Do not harm the integrty of the Unlversity’s compuler systems and netwarks.

a. Today's information techisology 15 a shaved reseurce. Respect the needs of others when wusing
computer ahd network resoyrces. Do hot tamper with facilities and avoid any actions that
nterfere with the nommal operations of computers, networks, and fadlitles.

b. Avord excessive use of computer resources. They are finite and others deserve thelr share.
"Spamming” and similar fnappropriate uses of University resources are not acceptable. Web
pages that are accessed to an excessive degree can be & drain on computer resources and,
excapt where sTgniffcant to the University's mission, may require the University to ask that they
be meved to a private Intemet previder.

¢ Although a respect for privacy Is fundamental to the University's policies, understand that akmost
any information can in principle be read or ¢opied; that some user infarmation Is maintained in

system logs as a part of responsible computer system maintenznce; that the University must
reserve the right to examine computer files, and that, in rare drouenstances, the Gniversity may
be compalled by law ar policy te examine even personal and confldentfal Information maintained
on University computing facilities,

d. You are granted privileges and responsibilities with your account. While these vary between
groups, the use of Lniversity resources for persenal commerdal gain or for partisan political
purposes {not including the expression of perseral pofitical views, debate and the bke) is

inappropriate and posstbly fllegal.
e. Individual University camputer systems have varying resources and demands. Some have
additionat and sometimes more restrickive guldetines applicable to their own user. ;

Implementation

A, AlL University codes of conduct apply to information technotogy as well as to other forms of

communication and activity.

Systems managers or olher individuals withfn an academic or administrative unit may be empewered to

suspand some or all privileges associated with computer use in cases of misuse or threat to the

fhtegricy of all ot part of the Univarsitys infarmation management resources.

C. Before any permanent action is takem against a user, the user will be advised of the bases for the
proposed actlon and given an opportunity to respond. Concerns about such actions may be raised
through the usual administrative or 2cademtc channels associated with the dean, school, facility or
resource in question.

D. Where a viokton of University policies or applicable taw appears to warrant action beyend a
suspension or elimination of computer privileges, the matter may be referred to a supervisor,
adininistrator or University disciplinary body with approprate authority or to law enforcement
authorities.

E. Complalnts ar concerns about another's use of University computer resources should be directed to the
administrator responsible for the facility or resource in question.

F. If you have any questions regarding proper compuwier wsage contact your ethics officer at
ethics®csa.adu,

G. §f you have any technical issues regarding the use of your cemputer, software, server or ather network
services contact ITD at helpdesk@csu.edy,

8.

Chicago State University Computer Usage Policy (pd{)

9501 5. King Deve
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&27/2014 ) Computer Usage Pficy | Information Technology Divisfon | Ghicago State University

Chicago. IL 60628
Bhane: 773.995.2000

£ 2017 - 2014 Chizaga State Unfversity. Al tights Raserved.
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e In your lez:ter, you'c

L Etrademaﬂcs atued trade names

' infringement,, Uademark dilurio
' federal faws” -

Based on these a!laga 118, °
1awsu1t against the faculty me
aim have been mﬁmged or

3 CSU facu{ty members- Hse- of unspectf' ed
ol claim are owned by CSU constitutes “trademark
and ather potentlai causes of action: under state. and

we. beheve it is unhkely that CSU would prevail in any
. Althoughyour letier i3 vague as'to what marksyeu -
‘ ,'you presumabiy mean: thf: pame, CHICAGO ST, AFE R
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© o lawsuits Un ay, of ceurse,. cngage in publi _debate anid thc: facul miembers mwte
S CSU respond puhhcly io the-many mdzscreﬁons‘expose& i the’ Blog The faculty

. merrﬂzers wﬁl not threaten CSU with aiawsmt for expressmg its epmmns.

Tha faculty members demand that Dr. Wavne Watson r,es:gn for t0 reasons. Flrst, A

" tinder his tenure, CSL has seen student enrollment dechne by 156 percent whxle the

.admxmstraﬂve ranks increased by 21 percent, and the uppu: adxmmstraﬁve ranks (Ass:stant 7;,

o las to “assncxauon” with:C8U, Ihe facuity members ARE assoczated w1th CSU In fact they are aﬂ
tenured prafessors at: CSU e ‘, : ; o
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UNIVERS!TY

) #&EC?@H!C&WMNT!MMM '

RATION - _ S
. -The parpose of this pohcy isto enhance Ch:cago State Umversity s ("CsSU” or“the Umvermty”) o
. .efforis te prevent and redress harassment within the CSU commumty by expressly addressmg the o
L fproblem ofelectromc-harassmeutlcyberbullymg, ' R

- CSU'is cammitted fo mamtal ng at:onal resxdentta! and workmg environments that

.7 “recognize the inherent worth and dignity of every person, that foster tolerance, understandmg,

.~ and mutual respect, and that’ permit students and employees to pursué their goals free from =
..~ haragsment thsit substantially interferes with their educational opportunities, peaceful enjoyment - T
~oof residence, physncal secunt_v, or terms or. conchtmns of employment (collecnveiy, protected
S mterests") QRS .

Advances in commumcanon technology have fiot on]y enabled harassers to bully theu' vzctlms
 rémotely but also to extend the reach.of their harass:ngldlsparagng comithunications literally
B woridw:de—thereby substantially mcreasmg the potentml injuious-and dlsru_ppve eﬂ‘ects that
T electromc-harassment/cyberbullymg and prmndes express notice that speech and/ur other
. expressive conduct engaged in off-campus may be subject 10 action by the Umversnty 25 .
o prowded herem . :

C CSU is- a[so committed to principles of academii¢ freedom and free speech. As an institution of
- higher education CSU endeavors to provide an academic environment in which free speech-and
-differencs of opinion are ‘actively encouraged and facﬂitated, and where opinions and deeply
held beliefs are challenged and debated, Critical to this mission is providing a nondxscnmmatary
environment that is conducive to learning, At times, respect for these ideals may require that
 inembeérs of the University community tol erate expressmns of cplnlon that differ ﬁOm their own
or that they may ﬁnd abhorrent : : :

Revised 3/3/14.
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| COMPLIANGE WITH FEDERAL, STATE, AND L- ' _' ALLAWS |

' 'agamst students : d employees m any educatmnal pmgmm or ﬂctmty recelvmg Federal_ h
R “financial- assistance. ' s T S
e :;Equal Fay Act of [963—amend:n;, the Falr Labor Standards Act of ¥938 and reqmnnj,. L
R femp!uyers to. pmwde equal pay for men and wornen performmg, slmnlar work j
-» Executive Order - 11246 as amended by Executive Grder Il375--proh1b1tmg :
= jdlscnmmatmn m employment ol basls of race colqr, rehgmn, sex, or natwnal Dr:g,m by
_ federai contrac!ors and subcontractors havm}, federal contracls in excess of SSG 000.
- = -Rehabilitation : Act of 19?3—pmh1bltmg dlscrlmmatwn agpinst hand:capped persons '
;(students or emp!ayces) by institutions recewmg Department of Health and Hum;m' -
. Services fundmg S R S '
= . American- wzth Dlsabaht:es Act of - 1990-c0ntamm3, broader protectmn for the
handu_:apped than both,the Nlinois Hum;_m Rights A_;:t and the Federal Rehabih_t_ataon Act.
of 1973. Persons with disabilities are _protected not only from discrimination in
-employment but discrimination. regardm;, housing, access to public accommodations and -
services, transpnrtatlon and telecommumcatmns

the Illinois Human nghts Comrmssmn and pmhlbltm}, discnmmatlon in alt fon‘ns in
connection with- employment, real gstate transactmns, access to ﬁnancnal credit-and
‘availability of public accommodations. | ‘
« The Vietnam-gra Veterans Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974--prohibiting
 discrimination in employment against Vietnam-era and disabled veterans.

Revised 34314
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":.f.; DEFINITIONS |

iAs used in: th:s pelicy, the follomng terms shall have the meamng's ‘set forth below.

D R "mtxmldates 3 mdmdual places an mdw;dual in reasonable fear of harm to the mdnndua] or
SRR damage te*the mdmdual 'S preperty, or has the effect of substant:ally dlsruptmg the mmvxdual s

' -:'-;-;conduct thiaf hes'a conhnmng mamf‘estatlon heyond the. hme of the conduct itself, mcladmg,
.o without limitation, internet blog postmgs, SOCIﬁl._ iasi i '
L "‘.:and!or in temet postmgs - o

e "‘Electmm ,speech” means expresswe conduct (verba] aural graphxc symbohc or written) that
. «is eonveyed orotherwise communicated: via electronic information and communication
- -technology devices and/or media, twéets, including, without limitation, e-mail messages, instant”
B "-;messagmg, text 1 messaging, cellular telephone commumcatlons, nternet: bleg postmgs, soclal
S mecha site postmgs, mtemet chat room pusts and/or interret postings. ‘

- “Employee has: the same meamng as “Staﬂ” or “Staﬁ' member” and fneans a person other than a
- faculty member who receives compensation-for work or services from fands controlled by the

- :Uruvers;ty, regardless of the source of funds; the dutles of the pcsmon, or the. amount of

' 3compensanon pald

“Facu]ty" or “facu]ty member” means any mdmdual who teaches or conducts research ator
under the auspices of the University ; and includes students with teaching responsxbllmes and
gother ms!metmnal personnel. -

. “OfF Campus” means any property, but]dmg, facility, lncatmn prermse, or site that does not fall
W!fhm the: definition of “off-campus

- '“On-Campu ' megns (1) the CSU campus, and any property, bmldmg or faclhty, that is owned,
- leased, used, operated or conirolled by the Umversity, {ii) non-Umversxty property, buildings,
. facilities, locations, or sites, diring the period of time when it is used for authorized University
" finctions including, but not limited to, registration, classroom or laboratory instruction, lectures,
-concerts, receptions, assemblies, intramural activities or intercollegiate athletic events; and (jii)
- any property, building, facility, location, premise, or site where and during the period of time
, _when a member of the University Corhmunity is attendmg, parhczpatmg or engaged ina

Revised 373714
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i erszty” means Chlcago State Umversxty ¢ ‘CSU‘ ) and all of 1ts undergraduate, graduate, o
ofessional sc nols dmswns and programs. B L

R ° mversrty aetmty’ heers. attendmg classes, eIassmom mstmchon, teachmg, rese:a,t:eh,l semce :

L _;admm:stmtwe funeuens ceréniciiiés; or educational or community programs’ conducted under Lo
", ‘the auspices: of the Unwerstty, mcIudmg, without hmltahon, mtemsh:ps, practtca ﬁeld-

O .placements, expenenha] learmn g, commumty—plaeement servnee, clmleal serwee sites .

_:A “Umversny commumty” er “member of’ the Unwermty commumty’ mesans a student, faculty o
- - -member, administrator, Trustee, Board membet, mesitber of any body adwsory tothe Unwers:ty, L
L staﬂ' member, guest 1nv1tee, empleyee, or agent of CSU.. e

o :gPOLICY
g 'S}Iamssment of any member of the University commumty is prohxb:ted
e ‘_Expresswe conduét consﬂtunng Harassment subject to this policy mcludes

| ";Expresswe -conduct (verbai physical; aural, graphic, symbolic, or wiitten), ncludmg, without .. o
..mmtatxon, cyberbullying and electrnmc harassment, engaged in while on-campus; U

e ,Expresswe conduct {verbal physxcal aural, graphic, symbolic, or wntten), mciudmg, w1thout' .
- limitation, eyberbull}nng and electronic harassment, engaged in while pamelpatmg ina CSU :
s -sponsored program or actmty On-Campus or off-campus,

_ Expresswe eonduct (verbal physical, aural, graphic, symbolic, er written), including, w:thout
lirtitation, cyberbullying and electronic harassment, engaged in while’ acting in an official
- eapacity for CSU or while eonch,;etmg business on behalf of CSU on-campus or off-campus;

Revised 34‘3114




*_ reasonably be interpre

o Electromc speech and!or cyberbullymg that is transrmtted, received, or dlssemmated through use
. of University-owned information technology resources, computer networks or systems, ot IT
. -Tesources, computer nelworks or systems, access to whrch is made avallable to the Umversﬂ;y
.CommnmtybyCSU w .. - o :

o Expresswe conduct (verbal, physlcal auml graphlc symbohc, or wntten), mcludmg, w1thout
‘[imitation, cyberbullying and electronic speech, on-or off campus by a CSU employee that may
as_makmg stibmission to unwalcome sexual advances, requests for
“sgxual favors; and/or conduct of a-sexual nature a term or condition of an individual's
3employm'e' of educauon ors factor inan. mdzvzdual’s academic or employment Statl.lS' )

- ,Exprasswe conduct: (verbal phymcal aural gtaphlc, symbohc, or written), mcludmg, without

B . liniitation, cyberbullymg and electronic: speech; on or off campus by a CSU-employee that may

.reasonably be interpreted as makmg submission to-or rejection of unwelcome sexual advances,
Vrequests for sexual favors, and/or conduct of a sexyal nature by an mdlwdual a basm for _

" : empicyment or acadernic decision affecting such individual.
. Off-campus expressive conduct (verbal, physical, aural, graphic, symbohc, or. wntten),

including, without limitation, cyberbut!ymg and elecironic speech, that is intended by the

| L 'speaker to reach the CSU campus and does, m fact, reach. the CSU campus and

--?'-E(A) creates (1) a matenal and substantlal chsruptxon of CSU’s educanona! mission, Operatlons,
;actmnes, or programs, or (n) a reasonable foreseeablc rxskﬂ:kehheod of’ causmg such a
. -chsruptron, '

' {B) materially and shbstantially déﬁie's, limits, or interferes with another’s abxllfy to fully
patticipate in or bepefit from CSU’s educational programs or activities, or creates a reasonable
foreseeable risk/ikelihood of causing any such effect;

{C} cavuses a material and s_ubs_tantial adverse impact on the work environment of a CSU faculty
member or employee that amcunts to a material and substantial change in the employee’s terms
or conditions of emp]oymcnt or creates a reasonable foreseeable risk/likelihood of causing such
Aadverse lmpact

: {D) is severs or pervaSI ve, and objectively and subjectively has the effect of unreasonably _
.interfering with another's work or equal access to education, or is sévere or pervasive and creates
a reasonable foreseeable risk/likelihood of causmg such interference;

{E)is sufﬁc:_ently sevare, pervasive, or persistent that it interferes with work, educational
performance, on-campus lving, or participation in a University activity on or off campus, or is
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. - “severe-orpervasive and creates a masonab!e fareseeabie risk/likelihood of caus:ng such
, mterference :

- (F) commumcates a serious- expre.ss:on ﬂf an intent to cumm:t an act of unlawﬁﬂ vmlence to a

o reclpxent, andisso severe pervaswe and objecnvely oﬁ'enswe and that s0 unde rmines and

‘deétracts from the victim's educatlonai expenence that the victim-students are effectively denied

~-equal access to the University's tesources- and opportumtles, or creates a reasunable foreseeable R

: -nsklllkehhood of causmg such dcmaL

- -. (H) !s directed toorata Umversxty employee because of hls or her sex, is unwelcome to the

o recipient, and is so-sevére, pervasive, and: ehjectweiy and subjectively offensive, and that so
"-: 'undermines and detracts from the victims' employee’s performance of his or her employment-.
- related dut:es or resyons:blht:es that the terms and conditions of the employee’s employment are

. materially and substantlally altcred, or creates a reasnnable foreseeable nskihkehhood of causmg
' suchalteratlon, or . L G .

T Dis (1) dlrected atan mdlv:duat because of that mdmdual’s age, color, disability, sex, national
- origin, race, relxgmn, sexual onentatzon, or veteran' s status, (2) unwelcome to the individual at
. whom the’ conduct is-directed; and (3) so severe, pervasive, and: objectively offensive that a
* reasonable person with the same characteristics of the victim would be adversely.affected toa
- degree that interferes with his or her ability to participate in or to realize the intended benefits of .
o 'Unwerszty employment andlor a Umversnty actw:ty, upportumty, ar resource
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:,ﬁ.REPonTING HARASSMENT&COMPLAM PRDCEDURE f I
. Resgonmblhhes

o dlscnmmatory harassment ag,amst may ﬁle & complamt wnth the Equal Emplcyment Opportumty.

(EEQ) Office. The EEO ‘Office is responsible ; for condiicting - investigations of alleged

S ._dlscnmmatmn and sexual harassment - -commplaints. Any: employee or student may at-any time

- - contact the BEO. Office for purposes of advice; discussion of an alleged-disérimination complaint
.~ andlor assistance'in undertaking a formal or mforma] resaltion of 2 complamt An. investigation |

~leading to a formal determination will normally be undertaken by the EEQ’ ‘Coordinator or his/her

* .designee upon receipt of a ‘written complaint. f there are mulhple reports ‘of allegedly illegal

- “harassment. or discrimination or of a single allegation of particularly grievous harsssment or
..~ tliscrimination, the EEQ Ceordmator ‘may, after consultanon ‘with the -President {or President's
: _':desq,nee) initiate an . mvestz;,atmn in the absence of receipt- ofa wmten complamt Complamts

should be-submitted as soon.as possible after the alleged disciimination has occurred it order ta
-permit prompt’ and equitable resofution. In:situations that -require immediate actmn because of

" safety or other concerns, the Umversnty may tnka any necessary action (e g sus;:ensmn w1th pay)

" 'in order to f'aenll!ate thei mvesu!,ataon

'The mvestlgat:on shall be - complcted as thoroug_.hly and expedltmusly as. posmble Any
“University staff and/or. facuity. member in a supemsory role has the duty to-report to the"'EEO
‘Cffice any knnwn alleged discriminatory harassmcnt snd/or discriminating behavior based on
sex, race or other basis (referenced above) that creates a hiostile environment, whether or not a

. - . complaint has been made by an alleged victim. A complaint of alleged diserimination, including

sexual harassment, against the Unwerssty President should be filed .with the Chair of the

~University Board of Trustees, Complaints against the EEO Coordinator or Officer shiould be filed
with the President, who will appomt a neutral party io carry out the role of the EEQ Oﬁ‘ ice a3
outlined below. .

Complaint Procedures

-1 Comp!éinant will be asked to complete an in-take form which will include a description
-of the alleged discrimination and the nature of the remedy desired. Any mvestlg,atton may
be assipned by the EEO Officer to the EEO Coordinator and/or any appropriate designee.

[

A private interview will be conducted by the Coordinator with the complainant.
3. The Coordinator will notify and interview the person{s} named in the complaint
{respondent) to apprise them of the charges and afford them an opportunity to respond.
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. - The investigatien by the Coordinator will include interviewing witnesses, collecting
- —,;;—:documenta'tion, 'and'seeking any additional 'infonnation necessary In conducting, the

:records, reports and documents in- possessmn of any Umversuy personnel and shall be
- afforded the opportumty to interview all persons possessing relevant information.
,j:_fThe Coardmator may asmst in- the mforma[ resolunon of the complamt With the consent'
,-uf both pames mvolved ‘the” Coordmator wnil arran&,e for information - to be sharedA N
between the pn;nes regardmg apphcable 1ssues and appmpnate remedles leure to reach o
-';a resolutmn will result in the continuation o[’the mvestxganon T .
6. The Coordinator will prepare ‘and forward a written ‘téport of the mvest:;,atlon and

: findings to the EEO Officer. The EEO Officer will then determme whethcr there exists..

. .substannal evndence o support the alle;,ed complamt

.. A final written determmat:on, setting forth the EEOQ Offi eers deerslon will be sent to both -

- the complainant and the respondent.

i0.

If dlsmplmary action is required as ‘2 result of a fi nding . agamst the respondent,
.'proeedures under the relevant cul!ectwe barg,almn;, agreements, Board of Trustees
oo Reg,ulahans, State Umversrties le Service Status aud Ruies, or University Student
" “”,Conduct Codé will be f‘o!lowed ' '

A review of the final detennmataon of the EEO Officer may be’ requested of the
President, '

Complainant has the right to file with the Hlinois Department of Human Rights (IDHR)
or the Equal- Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) at any time during an
investigation. Be aware that IDHR and EEOC have time limitations for filing a charge of

,d:sr:nmmatlon Any retaliatory action taken by a University employee against a

-complalmn;, party as a result of that party's seeking redress under these procedures is
 prohibited and shall be regarded as a separate and distinct cause for complaint under

“these procedures, It is a viplation of this policy for anyone to knoiv.ingly make false

accusations of discrimination or harassment. Failure to prove a claim is not equivalent to

a false allegation. Sanctions will be imposed for making false accusations of

discrimination or harassment.
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o ::Retallanon by any member: of the Umverslty commumty against an mdmdua! based on the

Andividual's teporting of conduct prohibited by this policy or the individual's filing of a complamt S

. ‘under fhii$ policy is prohibited. ‘Any member of the University community who engagen insuch
...retaliation shall be subject to discipline up. to and mcludmg expulsmn from the Umversity andlor

' termmatmn of Umversﬁy employment.
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